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         April 25, 2021 
 
Joaquin Esquivel, Chair 
Members of the Board 
State Water Resources Control Board 
Joaquin.Esquivel@waterboards.ca.gov 
commentletters@waterboards.ca.gov 
Via electronic mail 
 
Re: Enforce D-1641 Vernalis pulse flows now to help meet Delta flow and salinity 
requirements and to protect Shasta, Trinity, Oroville, and Folsom cold-water pools 
 
Dear Chair Esquivel and members of the Board: 
  

The California Sportfishing Protection Alliance (CSPA) and the California Water Impact 
Network (CWIN; collectively, CSPA et al.) respectfully urge the State Water Resources Control 
Board’s (Board) to immediately enforce the Vernalis pulse flow requirements of Water Rights 
Decision 1641 (D-1641).  Release of water from New Melones Reservoir to meet the required 
April 15-May 15 Vernalis pulse flows will also assist the Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) 
in meeting D-1641 Delta outflow and salinity requirements using less water from north-of-Delta 
reservoirs.  In the last several days, Reclamation and the Department of Water Resources have 
also been in violation of D-1641 Delta outflow and southern Delta salinity requirements.  

 
At the April 21, 2021 Board workshop on Sacramento River water temperature 

management, numerous parties described the desperate conditions of the cold-water pools in 
Shasta, Trinity, Oroville and Folsom reservoirs.  There was considerable discussion of how 
managing Shasta operations could redirect impacts to the other north-of-Delta reservoirs.  In 
contrast, Reclamation spokesperson Kristin White described New Melones as the “shining star” 
of the Central Valley Project because of its relatively better storage position.  Yet Reclamation is 
not releasing flows from New Melones to meet the required Vernalis flow requirement. 

 
At the April 21 workshop, Board members asked questions concerning the Board’s 

authority to limit 2021 water deliveries to Sacramento River Settlement Contractors.  However, 
the Board’s authority under D-1641 to require the Vernalis pulse flow is set forth directly in the 
Decision.  

 
At the April 21 workshop, Board members also expressed concerns about reducing 

irrigation deliveries.  However, a substantial portion of the water currently stored in New 
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Melones Reservoir is Reclamation water.  The Robie decision clearly describes meeting Delta 
flow requirements with New Melones water as an in-basin use.1     

 
The situation in 2021 for the water temperatures and associated fisheries Sacramento 

River, as well as for the Trinity, Feather and American rivers, is dire.  The situation for Delta 
fisheries is also dire.  CSPA et al. urges the Board to immediately improve the situation for the 
state and federal reservoirs north of the Delta by requiring Reclamation to use New Melones to 
meet the Vernalis pulse flows required by D-1641.  We further recommend that the Board 
compel Reclamation to make the required volume of release from New Melones that it has been 
short since April 15, in the way that the Board deems most beneficial to Delta aquatic resources. 

 
Thank you for considering this urgent request.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

_________________________________ 
Chris Shutes, Water Rights Advocate 
California Sportfishing Protection Alliance 
1608 Francisco St., Berkeley, CA 94703 
(510) 421-2405 
blancapaloma@msn.com 
 
 

 
____________________________________ 
Bill Jennings, Executive Director 
California Sportfishing Protection Alliance 
3536 Rainier Ave, Stockton CA 95204 
(209) 464-5067 
deltakeep@me.com 
 
 

 
Michael Jackson, counsel to  
CSPA and CWIN  
P.O. Box 207, 429 W. Main St., 
Quincy, CA 95971,  
mjatty@sbcglobal.net 
 
 
 

 
__________________________________ 
Carolee Krieger, Executive Director 
California Water Impact Network 
808 Romero Canyon Rd., 
Santa Barbara, CA 93108 
(805) 969-0824 
caroleekrieger7@gmail.com 

 
Enclosure: Figures showing Stanislaus River and San Joaquin River flows since April 15, 2021, 
and D-1641 requirements.  
 
 

 
1 See State Water Resources Control Bd. Cases (2006) 136 Cal.App.4th at 145: “That the Bureau may have chosen to 
operate New Melones separately from the rest of the CVP, which it operates in coordination with the Department’s 
operation of the SWP under the coordinated operating agreement, has no bearing on the Board’s authority to allow 
the Bureau to use New Melones water in meeting the objectives in the 1995 Bay-Delta Plan.” 
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